# Cyngor Abertawe Swansea Council

#### **City and County of Swansea**

#### **Notice of Meeting**

You are invited to attend a Meeting of the

# **Economy & Infrastructure Policy Development Committee**

At: Committee Room 5, Guildhall, Swansea

On: Thursday, 16 January 2020

Time: 2.00 pm

**Chair:** Councillor Mandy Evans

Membership:

Councillors: J E Burtonshaw, P Downing, P R Hood-Williams, P K Jones, M A Langstone, W G Lewis, P Lloyd, P M Matthews and T M White

	Agenda				
1	Apologies for Absence.				
2	Disclosures of Personal & Prejudicial Interests. <a href="https://www.swansea.gov.uk/disclosureofinterests">www.swansea.gov.uk/disclosureofinterests</a>				
3	Minutes. To approve and sign the Minutes of the previous meeting(s) as a correct record.	1 - 4			
4	Cabinet Member Response in relation to the Scrutiny Inquiry Panel Report (Tourism).	5 - 39			
5	Feedback from Site Visit to Homes as Power Stations.				
6	Discussion on Work Programme for 2020.				
7	Workplan 2019/2020.	40 - 41			
	Next Meeting: Thursday, 20 February 2020 at 2.00 pm				

Huw Evans

Head of Democratic Services Thursday, 9 January 2020

Contact: Democratic Services - Tel: (01792) 636923

## Agenda Item 3



#### **City and County of Swansea**

# Minutes of the Economy & Infrastructure Policy Development Committee

Committee Room 5, Guildhall, Swansea

Thursday, 14 November 2019 at 2.00 pm

**Present**: Councillor V M Evans (Chair) Presided

Councillor(s)Councillor(s)Councillor(s)J E BurtonshawP DowningP R Hood-Williams

W G Lewis P M Matthews T M White

Officer(s)

Caritas Adere Senior Lawyer

Phil Holmes Head of Economic Regeneration and Planning

Martin Nicholls Director of Place

Paul Relf Economic Development & External Funding Manager

Samantha Woon Democratic Services Officer

**Apologies for Absence** Councillor(s): P Lloyd

#### 25 Disclosures of Personal & Prejudicial Interests.

In accordance with the Code of Conduct adopted by the City and County of Swansea, no interests were declared.

#### 26 Minutes.

**Resolved** that the Minutes of the Economy and Infrastructure Policy Development Committee held on 17 October, 2019, be approved as a correct record subject to the inclusion of apologies in respect of Councillor P R Hood-Williams.

#### 27 High Street Empty Properties.

The Economic Development and External Funding Manager, accompanied by the Director of Place and Head of Planning and City Regeneration, provided a presentation on High Street Empty Properties.

The presentation detailed:

- How many properties are empty.
- What are the reasons?
- What resources are being used to mitigate?

# Minutes of the Economy & Infrastructure Policy Development Committee (14.11.2019) Cont'd

What is the future?

How may properties are empty (main street)

8 properties currently empty:

- 224: no plans apparent
- 202-204 Elysium: repairs undertaken when requested
- 205 Shoulder of Mutton: no plans apparent
- 225 no plans apparent
- 226 currently scaffolded
- 209 city bakery empty
- 22-23 for sale
- 238 coral empty

#### What are the reasons?

- Shifting in public shopping habits on line
- Change in 'axis of opportunity' in the City Centre
- Building ownership and motivation
- News headlines don't necessarily represent full picture
- Developments are usually commercially sensitive and require lengthy preparation

What resources are being used to mitigate?

Strategic Context:

- South West Wales Economic Regeration Framework
- Swansea Central Area regeneration Framework
- South West Regional Plan for Regeneration (WG TRI Programme)

What resources are being used to mitigate?

Vibrant and Viable Places programme

- Property Enhancement and Homes Above Shops grant support
- Working with Coastal Housing on Urban Village
- National Station Improvement Programme

What resources are being used to mitigate?

Targeted Regeneration Investment Programme and Town Centre Loan Fund

- Property enhancement grants
- Sustainable living grants (market housing)
- 0% interest loan availability
- 2 PEDG grants awarded to date
- 1 SLG grant awarded to date

What resources are being used to mitigate?

European Regional Development Fund:

Palace Theatre acquisition and renovation

What resources are being used to mitigate?

Private investment

- Mariner Street student accommodation
- Oldway House student accommodation
- Multiple developers match funding grant opportunities

#### On site or occupied

- 32-33 High Street Mackworth Court Coastal with TRI PEDG support
- 73 High Street with TRI SLG support
- 228 High Street Coastal?
- Shopping Arcade: mostly occupied
- 211, 214 and 216 redeveloped and occupied as part of Urban Village
- Palace major catalyst for upper High Street

#### What is the future

- Early shoots Urban Village, Palace, Range of VVP and TRI investments
- Funding availability leads to incremental improvements
- Negotiation and partnership more effective than enforcement
- Efficient use of limited resources
- Student economy

In response to Members' questions, Officers stated that:

- 1. It is a condition of the grant that buildings have to be maintained. Enforcement was achieved through negotiation and this could be a challenge.
- 2. Partnership working with both public and private sector organisations raises awareness regarding the Council's ability to assist.
- 3. Negotiations were underway with the owners of the former Palace Theatre, however, it was an elongated process.
- 4. Whilst properties were recorded as 'empty', technically only 8 were officially empty. Factors such as ownership changes, awaiting demolition and refurbishment would result in them being included in this category.
- 5. Officers would be meeting colleagues from Community Safety in regard to the viability of utilising empty properties for the benefit of the homeless.
- 6. Liaising with developers was a challenge and must be linked to planning consent.
- 7. The Council was having a direct dialogue with Transport for Wales.
- 8. CCTV and enhanced lighting would be committed within the next 6 months.
- 9. Consultation will be undertaken with local residents.
- 10. It was agreed that maximising the High Street area to promote Swansea was of utmost importance.

The Chair thanked the Officers for their informative presentation.

**Resolved** that the report be noted.

#### 28 Swansea Economy (Implications of Brexit).

The Economic Development and External Funding Manager, accompanied by the Director of Place and Head of Planning and City Regeneration provided a presentation on the implications of Brexit.

Whilst many scenarios were circulating there was a general lack of clarity. It was noted that projects/grants had been committed and would be honoured for 2022-23.

Minutes of the Economy & Infrastructure Policy Development Committee (14.11.2019)
Cont'd

The meeting **adjourned** at 2.50 due to a fire alarm.

The meeting **reconvened** at 3.05 but was inquorate and the remaining items were cancelled.

The meeting ended at 3.05 pm

Chair

# Agenda Item 4



#### Report of the Cabinet Member for Investment, Regeneration and Tourism

#### Cabinet - 21 November 2019

# Scrutiny Inquiry on Tourism Cabinet Member Response and Action Plan

**Purpose:** To outline a response to the scrutiny recommendations

and to present an action plan for agreement.

Policy Framework: None

**Consultation:** Legal, Finance, Access to Services

**Recommendation(s):** It is recommended that:

1) The response as outlined in the report and related action plan be agreed.

**Report Author:** Councillor Robert Francis-Davies

Finance Officer: Aimee Dyer

**Legal Officer:** Debbie Smith

Access to Services Cath

Officer:

Catherine Window

#### 1.0 Introduction

- 1.1 The scrutiny report on Tourism was submitted to Cabinet on the 18 July 2019 after the Scrutiny Working Group completed a detailed inquiry. The scrutiny report is attached as **Appendix A**.
- 1.2 Having considered the contents of the scrutiny report, and specific recommendations made, advice to Cabinet on whether it should agree, or not agree, with each recommendation is detailed in this report.
- 1.3 Cabinet is also asked to consider, for each of the responses, any relevant policy commitments and any other relevant activity.

#### 2.0 Response to Scrutiny Recommendations

#### **Recommendation 1**

The Working Group was pleased to see how much hard work is being done by the Authority to promote tourism in the area. We feel that there is a lot more the Authority could do but recognise that this is restricted by the budget that has reduced drastically in recent years.

#### **Relevant Policy Commitments:**

Destination Management Plan 2017-2020

**Action already being undertaken**: Over the last 3 years, we have been working towards a 50% reduction in budget. This has resulted in the closure of the Tourist Information Centre (2016) and the refocussing of activity in line with a digital strategy, which will increase more web visits, increase social media followers and engagement and capture additional segmented and profiled email addresses.

New actions following from the recommendation: Having just reviewed the Destination Management Plan (DMP), one of the recommendations is to ensure greater input from those Heads of Service whose service areas play an important role in the management of the destination. These will be invited to future steering group meetings.

**Cabinet Member Comments:** Consider how a Tourism Strategy may also be introduced, working alongside the current DMP.

Recommendation is **AGREED** 

#### Recommendation 2

We feel it is important to recognise the value of the natural environment to tourism and the economy and recommend that:

- a. Work on an off-road cycling network is brought forward and that money is found to fund the production of a cycling map for the area (estimated at £50,000, mostly in legal fees).
- b. Consideration is given to making more use of volunteers to help maintain our environmental assets such as footpaths, steps etc. This is a valuable resource for the Authority and can be a great learning and social experience for volunteers.

#### **Relevant Policy Commitments:**

Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Environment (Wales) Act 2016

Corporate Priority: Maintaining and enhancing Swansea's Natural

Resources and Biodiversity

Council's Section 6 Biodiversity Plan (and associated Corporate

Biodiversity Action Plan)
Green Infrastructure Strategy
Destination Management Plan 2017-2020

#### Action already being undertaken:

The Council has a duty under the Environment (Wales) Act to 'maintain and enhance biodiversity' and to 'promote the resilience of ecosystems'. Each Council function/Service Area should now be considering where and how they can achieve this through their service/business plans. The Corporate Biodiversity working group will provide a vehicle for raising awareness and encouraging best practice.

The natural environment plays an important role in tourism and consistently comes up as one of the main reasons why people visit our area. As such, sustainability is one of the four key priorities in the Destination Management Plan and the Tourism Team encourages responsible tourism throughout our marketing activity, e.g. recycling, reducing ecological footprint, sustainable transport, walking/cycling, using local produce, etc.

#### New actions following from the recommendation:

In response to the specific recommendations:

a) off-road cycling network and map:

We've previously investigated this but Active Travel money cannot be used for non-urban routes.

The possibility of a Gower off-road cycle route is at early stages of consideration. This project would develop and promote a network of bridleways as a way of enjoying the countryside by bike. It would enable visitors to explore large areas of Gower AONB by bicycle and cross much of the landscape including the high points of all the major hills. There would however be some unavoidable short road sections. It is estimated the cost of the initial phases including physical works, legal processes, landowner compensation, etc. would cost £26,000. There is currently no budget available for such works, so grant funding will need to be identified, but it unlikely to cover full costs and future management implications.

b) volunteers to help maintain environmental assets

The Council already uses volunteers, for example the Ramblers, for such purposes. However, active, committed volunteers are only one part of a solution to meeting the demands of the service currently, which also includes equipment, supervision, training and transport costs. Even if the number of volunteers and volunteer days was doubled, the impact on the amount of maintenance needed would be

minimal and so we are not in a position to increase our responsibilities as a result. However, the Service is in the process of appointing a Welsh Government funded, volunteer coordinator, to increase the number of volunteer projects undertaken and we welcome the support to promote this, within the context of the information above.

**Cabinet Member Comments:** Welcome the suggestions and enthusiasm for a sustainable solution to developing the network but funding will need to be identified first.

Recommendation is **Partly Agreed** to investigate grant funding for the network and increase the recruitment of volunteers.

#### **Recommendation 3**

The Working Group would like to see an improvement in signage especially in Gower. Many signs are missing or in need of repair. The Authority has a statutory duty to signpost footpaths and bridle paths and we would like people to be made aware that if the Department is informed of any signage issues for these areas they will rectify them.

#### **Relevant Policy Commitments:**

Destination Management Plan 2017-2020

#### Action already being undertaken:

Regarding different signage:

Highways signage – a comprehensive audit was conducted a few years ago in partnership with Highways. Findings were forwarded to maintenance team for repairs / replacement. Some improvements still outstanding due to lack of budget to address all issues.

Footpaths/bridleways signage – it is a statutory duty of the Council's Countryside Access Team to rectify any signage issues with footpaths and bridleways. However signage is only appropriate where the footpath or bridleway is fully accessible, i.e. maintained in a good condition. Due to reduced maintenance budget and grant availability the number of footpaths and bridleways the Council is able to maintain in a good condition is decreasing every year.

Waymarks Fingerposts – an audit was conducted 2 years ago at various Council-run beaches and a rolling programme is in place to repair/replace the wooden fingerposts on the seafront as and when budget becomes available. Langland Bay was completed this year and Caswell is to follow.

Statutory Signage – e.g. dog ban, water quality, bye-laws, restrictions, planning notices, etc.

Promotional / Interpretation Signage – e.g. Blue Flags, Lobster Campaign, Smoke-free Beaches, safety messages, etc.

Signage 'clutter' is a recurring issue across the destination, however it becomes more evident in the traditional hotspots such as Port Eynon for example, where a lot of different signs have been erected over the years but not removed (where relevant) or maintained (where needed). This is mainly due to the fact that signage, (as outlined above) has varying functions across different services and each with reduced or zero resources to apply a coordinated approach to ongoing maintenance or replacement.

#### New actions following from the recommendation:

Await the findings of the 2019 visitor and trade surveys to see if there are issues with highways signage.

Highways signage: consider another strategic audit for 2020 if resources could be ring-fenced for any identified improvements and repairs.

Consider a site-specific, co-ordinated approach to signage between the various Council teams and allocate responsibility/pool resources for ongoing maintenance.

#### **Cabinet Member Comments:**

Consider funding application and opportunity for policy commitments to resource signage improvement.

Recommendation is **AGREED subject to budget constraints** 

#### **Recommendation 4**

We are concerned about funding post Brexit and recommend that a piece of work is undertaken to identify future grant funding possibilities.

#### **Relevant Policy Commitments:**

Explore innovative funding and investment strategies and borrow prudently to support the City Deal, only when it is right to do so.

Implement a joined up approach to all public expenditure and the use of buildings and resources to ensure we can continue to do more with less and can seek the wider and more imaginative community use of public assets, such as Council-owned buildings.

Continue to explore collaborative and innovative ways in which local

services can be financed and delivered most efficiently, and how the value of council assets can be maximised.

#### Action already being undertaken:

The Economic Development and External Funding Team subscribes to an online grants database and continually monitors available grant and loan funding opportunities.

There is a need for continued engagement with Welsh Government to influence the shape of tourism funding post Brexit, and to explore partnership funding models where other organisations may be in a better position to bid for funding but with the backing and support of the Council. There is some success already with this approach, e.g. Hafod Copperworks' Musgrave Engine House project working with Swansea University and Friends of Hafod-Morfa Copperworks. External funding from EU sources has been decreasing as a percentage of overall external funding secured in recent years.

#### New actions following from the recommendation:

In any new DMP action plan, ED&EFT to review actions and identify potential funding streams.

Continue engagement with Welsh Government to influence shape of tourism funding post Brexit.

Explore potential partnership funding models for future projects.

#### **Cabinet Member Comments:**

The City Deal and regeneration of Hafod Copperworks remain a key priority for the Council in improving economic wellbeing and tourism in the area.

Recommendation is **AGREED** 

#### **Recommendation 5**

We feel that the Authority should look at good practice from other areas regarding the marketing of accommodation in Swansea.

#### **Relevant Policy Commitments:**

Destination Management Plan 2017-2020

#### Action already being undertaken:

The accommodation sector is part of a destination's overall tourism offer and is intrinsically linked to other elements such as activities,

attractions, food & drinks and major events.

Our marketing campaigns focus on promoting the destination as a whole rather than just the accommodation sector.

However, we do have a comprehensive 'Where To Stay' section on the official tourism website with 56 listed private sector accommodation providers (e.g. hotels, B&Bs, hostels, caravan and camping sites, etc.). These are businesses/organisations who buy into a yearly marketing package with the Council, i.e. Visit Swansea Bay Marketing Partners.

Our current requirement is that all accommodation operators on the tourism website must be inspected and graded/listed with either VisitWales or The AA.

Although this provides reassurance to visitors and a level of protection for the Council in case of a complaint, this also restricts the number of businesses that can be recruited as Marketing Partners. It also doesn't reflect the way visitors now search for accommodation i.e. they search for brands, recommendations and increasingly, through the sharing economy.

Some operators, whether graded or not, choose to promote their property through other, unregulated sharing economy networks such as Airbnb or local private websites (e.g. gower.com).

We already undertake regular benchmarking exercises to assess how other comparable destinations market themselves and also exchange good practice e.g. through BRADA (British Resorts and Destinations Association) of which we are members.

A few years ago, we also worked with Visit Wales in appointing a consultancy to undertake an Accommodation Demand Study. This work has informed some of the most recent hotel developments in the City Centre.

STEAM figures and occupancy figures are also a good benchmark to determine how Swansea compares to the Welsh average and other destinations. Swansea occupancy figures for serviced accommodation, for example, are consistently higher than the Wales average and the STEAM figures demonstrate continuous growth.

Regular visitor surveys give us an insight into who our visitors are, where they come from, where they stay, how they booked their holiday, how much they spent, whether they are satisfied with their visit and likely to visit again and/or recommend us to others. We are able to use this intelligence to target our marketing activity more effectively.

We are also planning a tourism trade survey for this Autumn to benchmark destination performance against the 2012 findings. Questions revolve mainly around destination management issues.

#### New actions following from the recommendation:

Research the arrangements that other LAs in Wales have with their businesses who want to promote their services with them.

Review our current requirement to only accept graded properties on our tourism website and consider a policy statement for this.

Report the findings of the visitor and trade surveys to relevant Cabinet Members and the DMP Steering Group.

#### **Cabinet Member Comments:**

We welcome a review of the current approach across Wales and to receiving a report as to how changes would impact upon the destination marketing plans in the future.

Recommendation is **AGREED** 

#### Recommendation 6

We recommend that the Authority explores introducing an information and availability phone line for holiday accommodation in the area. If this includes a booking system, and commission is charged, it could pay for itself.

#### **Relevant Policy Commitments:**

Destination Management Plan 2017-2020

#### Action already being undertaken:

In 2016, due to financial cuts, the Council made the decision to close the Tourist Information Centre; a trend reflected across Wales and England over recent years. The TIC acted as a one-stop shop for visitors seeking information about the area and offered an accommodation booking service in return for a small fee. However, demand for this service reduced as online bookings increased. Local accommodation providers were also reluctant to pay a nominal commission / booking fee to the TIC.

The general shift towards the Internet paved the way for the digital transformation of our services and substantial investment in <a href="https://www.visitswanseabay.com">www.visitswanseabay.com</a>. We refocussed our marketing a number of years ago when we ceased the production of a printed holiday guide and its 'mailed' distribution via a distribution agency. Our digital strategy now strongly focuses on increasing web visits and social media followers, stimulating online engagement as well as capturing

segmented and profiled email addresses for use in future marketing activity.

Today, businesses are far more digitally advanced than ever before and most offer online booking facilities on their website or via third party sites.

Via Visitswanseabay.com, we also offer Partners the chance to upload their 'Late Availability' on the tourism website to fulfil any last-minute vacancies.

#### New actions following from the recommendation:

None - this is a strategy most LAs are following across Wales, as is Visit Wales. We will continue to promote all aspects of the destination online and keep abreast of the latest digital developments.

#### **Cabinet Member Comments:**

The ongoing transformation and development of the service is in response to customer behaviour and industry trends. Retaining adequate level of resources is the current priority in order to ensure the sustainability of the service and, consequently, the sector.

Recommendation is **NOT AGREED** 

#### Recommendation 7

We would like to see the Authority make use of the membership of national organisations to market eco-tourism in the area such as National Trust, RSPB etc.

#### **Relevant Policy Commitments:**

Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Environment (Wales) Act 2016

Corporate Priority: Maintaining and enhancing Swansea's Natural

Resources and Biodiversity

Council's Section 6 Biodiversity Plan (and associated Corporate

Biodiversity Action Plan)

Green Infrastructure Strategy

Destination Management Plan 2017-2020

#### Action already being undertaken:

Eco-tourism is not a market we are in a position to currently proactively promote as outlined above. Resources are stretched and our focus is on driving commercial partnerships. However, it forms part of our marketing campaigns in the sense that we always encourage our visitors to follow responsible tourism principles and to respect the natural environment - appealing to those that favour active, outdoors

#### pursuits.

We are witnessing businesses becoming increasingly environmentally conscious and aware, and we signpost operators to organisations such as WRAP, Green Key, BayTrans, Swansea Bay Good Food Circle (local produce) etc. in order to reduce their ecological footprint.

#### New actions following from the recommendation:

Continue to develop our own visitor databases to target throughout the year, as we don't have access to membership databases, such as NT, due to GDPR reasons.

Consider potential advertising with these membership organisations in the future, should the right opportunities arise.

Invite these organisations to future destination management stakeholder events to further promote their services and their role in eco-tourism.

#### **Cabinet Member Comments:**

We remain committed to embedding sustainability and protection of the environment in all our priorities and service plans and will continue to do so as much as possible.

Recommendation is **NOT AGREED** 

#### Recommendation 8

We feel that there needs to be a 'whole council' approach to supporting big events in Swansea. Departments such as Refuse and Street Cleansing need to work with the Tourism team to ensure events run smoothly and everything is cleaned up afterwards.

#### **Relevant Policy Commitments:**

Destination Management Plan 2017-2020

#### Action already being undertaken:

Events are a key driver of Tourism. The Special Events Team currently works closely with several other Council departments / teams in order to deliver safe and enjoyable events across the City and County. These include Council organised events and those run by the private sector.

#### For example:

Highways – road closures, traffic plans, event parking, enforcement, Park & Ride

Parks & Cleansing – event site preparation & reparation; litter collection, recycling

Public Health - food safety, event licensing

Legal – events contracts and indemnities

Communications – corporate press and social media support

Health & Safety – emergency management and contingency planning

Cultural Services Marketing & Tourism team undertake the event marketing activity to residents and visitors.

#### New actions following from the recommendation:

That the Special Events Team within Cultural Services acts as the first and single point of contact for events and event organisers in relation to the delivery of events and event management enquiries. The delivery of events in public spaces is a cross cutting activity involving all relevant departments as part of our ongoing ability to deliver on the Council's priority of transforming our economy and infrastructure, inclusion and wellbeing factors.

Endeavouring to ensure that associated new developments or major events take into account sustainable development principles where possible and, where feasible, mitigating actions are developed regarding sustainability.

#### Cabinet Member Comments:

A systematic approach for the whole council, for internal and externally provided events is the preferred operating model.

Recommendation is **AGREED** 

#### **Recommendation 9**

We would like the Authority to consider ring-fencing a percentage of receipts from car parks to maintain the local destination, including maintaining and cleaning public facilities, etc.

#### **Relevant Policy Commitments:**

Destination Management Plan 2017-2020

#### Action already being undertaken:

The Council adopts an approach where all income is taken into

account when setting directorate and service budgets and as such is built into the medium term financial plan.

Any ring-fencing of income from car parks would have to take place as part of a budget proposal and offset by a compensatory additional budget allocation into the car parks budget.

Alternatively Council could decide as part of the budget process to allocate additional finding to any priority area as part of its annual budget setting process

#### New actions following from the recommendation:

A coordinated approach to events and resource setting as above, will assist in ensuring a sustainable provision. We will continue to monitor the situation, opportunities and risks, via the Destination Management Plan delivery and sub groups and service planning procedures.

#### **Cabinet Member Comments:**

We will continue to consider the best opportunities for income, support mechanisms and sustainability of our services but recognise they are already interdependent and connected in terms of provision, cost and reliance on income. We cannot agree this at present as it would affect the ability of one part of the Directorate to function, in favour of another, so further work would be required on this as part of budget setting and analysis of impact.

Recommendation is **NOT AGREED** 

#### **Recommendation 10**

We would like marketing videos to show more of what people can do and see if they visit Swansea, such as walking/cycling in Gower and promotion of cultural tourism. We would also like to see more use of 'viral' types of advertising that have proved effective in the past and we would like to see more use of sites with large footfall throughout Swansea to promote/advertise tourism in the area, such as the Market and Quadrant Bus Station.

#### **Relevant Policy Commitments:**

Destination Management Plan 2017-2020

#### Action already being undertaken:

Our marketing activity targets potential visitors from outside Wales, therefore it is not always visible to Swansea residents. We already have a range of promotional videos produced to market the destination, which can be viewed on our YouTube channel at:

#### www.youtube.com/user/visitswanseabayTV

Our videos are produced in a number of formats so that they can become viral, shared by our partners and are often produced in such a way that they can have a number of different uses.

These videos are promoted online via the tourism website, social media and email marketing to our targeted audiences. This is one of many channels we use to promote the 130 private sector Partners, who have signed up to yearly marketing packages with us.

Our digital content focusses on the main reasons why people visit Swansea Bay, which are the key findings of our visitor survey, i.e. beaches, natural landscape and our coastline.

#### New actions following from the recommendation:

New videos are already planned for 2020 'Year of the Great Outdoors' however, a strong commitment to continue with this strategy for 2021 and beyond will be vital as Tourism is the only section within the Council, which proactively place-markets the destination.

#### **Cabinet Member Comments:**

The digital transformation of the team is reaping benefits and the increasing number of users of these platforms, justifies recent, albeit tough decisions we have had to make. It is critical that the digital content is continually refreshed to continue to be able to target the relevant markets.

Recommendation is **AGREED** 

#### **Recommendation 11**

Members of the Working Group are happy to promote tourism in Swansea through social media, by posting videos and tweeting links etc. We suggest all councillors are contacted, to ask if they will do the same.

#### **Relevant Policy Commitments:**

Destination Management Plan 2017-2020

#### Action already being undertaken:

We have existing channels that both businesses and consumers follow to receive information, including Facebook, Twitter, YouTube, Instagram, e-newsletters, etc.

We post regular updates and generate a high level of engagement with

our audiences.

#### New actions following from the recommendation:

To identify and share with all members the digital channels they can follow and sign up to, so they can assist in the promotion of the destination.

#### **Cabinet Member Comments:**

I welcome this opportunity for members to share the good work of the team amongst their own networks and help to extend the reach of the campaigns.

Recommendation is **AGREED** 

#### **Recommendation 12**

We feel that scrutiny needs to look at this topic in more detail than can be done in a one-off working group. We will therefore recommend to the Scrutiny Programme Committee that Tourism is considered as a future scrutiny inquiry topic.

#### **Relevant Policy Commitments:**

Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015
Destination Management Plan 2017-2020
Welsh Government 'Partnership for Growth': Strategy for Tourism 2013-2020

#### Action already being undertaken:

We have presented to scrutiny inquiries in 2014 and 2019 and welcome any further opportunities to raise the profile of Tourism and its importance to the local economy, Council priorities, Welsh Government priorities and the Well-Being of Future Generations Act.

#### New actions following from the recommendation:

Whilst we would be happy to be part of a future topic, the real challenge lies in ensuring that a tourism strategy for the destination is developed and integrated alongside other council strategies and polices. An ideal starting point for this, at a time when the national strategy is being reviewed, is to present the work of the tourism team to the Policy Development Committee (PDC).

#### **Cabinet Member Comments:**

Tourism is a vital part of our employment and resident offer, as well as a generator of income and investment from visitors and businesses.

We are committed to ensuring it continues to thrive and the work of the council in promoting this is recognised and supported accordingly, with local, regional and national stakeholder partnerships in place.

#### Recommendation is **AGREED**

- 2.1 An action plan for the agreed recommendations is attached as *Appendix B*.
- 3. Equality and Engagement Implications
- 3.1 A full EIA report will be produced following the review of the current DMP
- 4. Legal Implications
- 4.1 There are no legal implications with this report
- 5. Financial Implications
- 5.1 There are no specific financial implications for this report

#### **Background Papers:**

Destination Management Plan 2017-20 available at <a href="www.swansea.gov.uk/dmp">www.swansea.gov.uk/dmp</a>

#### **Appendices**

Appendix A – Original Scrutiny Report

Appendix B – Proposed Cabinet Action Plan



#### **Report of the Tourism Scrutiny Working Group**

#### **Cabinet – 18 July 2019**

#### **Scrutiny Report on Tourism**

Purpose: This report presents the findings, conclusions and

recommendations resulting from a Scrutiny Working Group on Tourism. Cabinet is required to consider the conclusions

and recommendations and respond.

Policy Framework: Council Constitution

**Consultation:** Access to Services, Legal and Finance

**Recommendation(s):** It is recommended that:

1) Cabinet receives the report and tasks the relevant Cabinet Member to report back to a Cabinet meeting with a written response to the report and recommendations of the Scrutiny Working Group and proposed action(s), for Cabinet decision.

**Report Authors:** Councillor Peter Jones

Liz Jordan

Finance Officer: Paul Cridland

**Legal Officer:** Tracey Meredith

Access to Services

Officer:

Catherine Window

#### 1. Introduction

- 1.1 A one-off Scrutiny Working Group to look at issues around Tourism was established by the Scrutiny Programme Committee. A small number of Working Groups are set up each year to carry out 'light-touch' examination of topics of importance and concern.
- 1.2 A cross-party group of scrutiny councillors were appointed by the Committee and met on 1 May to consider information, ask questions, and discuss Tourism. This report presents the findings, conclusions and recommendations resulting from the Scrutiny Working Group into Tourism, for Cabinet decision.

- 1.3 The convener of the Working Group, Councillor Peter Jones, will present the report and accompanying recommendations.
- 1.4 Cabinet should respond to the report within two months and provide an explanation for any recommendations that are not agreed.
- 1.5 The Scrutiny Programme Committee will be responsible for follow up and monitoring of agreed action with the relevant Cabinet Member during the course of its work.

#### 2. What the Working Group Looked At

- 2.1 The Working Group looked at:
  - Overview in terms of context
  - What is being done to promote Wales as a tourist destination
  - What is being done to promote Swansea Bay as a tourist destination
  - What is the current picture
  - Strengths and Weaknesses
  - Vision/strategy to promote/sustain tourism for the next 5 to 10 years
  - What is the business plan for putting this in place
  - Data on why people visit the area
  - Findings/recommendations from previous tourism inquiry and follow up and any outstanding issues
  - Information on benchmarking with the rest of the UK (Scotland, Ireland)
  - Any other information the department thinks it would be useful for the Working Group to consider.
- 2.2 The Working Group heard from the Cabinet Member for Investment, Regeneration and Tourism along with the Tourism and Marketing Manager and the Strategic Manager, Tourism, Marketing and Events. A written report was provided by the Cabinet Member for discussion.
- 2.3 The Working Group also received presentations on sustainable/eco-tourism from Officers from Gower AONB, Nature Conservation and Countryside Access teams.

#### 3. Findings

#### 3.1 Sustainable / Eco-Tourism Presentations

3.1.1 Chris Lindley, Gower AONB Team Leader, Deb Hill, Nature Conservation Team Leader and Chris Dale, Countryside Access Team Leader attended to present an overview of the work the Authority undertakes in relation to sustainable/eco-tourism.

#### 3.1.2 The following main issues were discussed:

- Important to recognise the value of natural environment to tourism and the economy.
- As well as Gower, the River Tawe Corridor is also important to tourism.
   The Local Development Plan has just been agreed and includes access to riverbank along Tawe corridor.
- Working Group pleased to see how much hard work is being done by Authority.
- There is a lot more the Authority could do in relation to tourism if it had the resource but budget has been reduced by 50% in some areas over last 3 years. Department welcomes recommendations from scrutiny on things that can be done with minimum resource.
- Eco-tourism is very important for Gower. Working Group would like to see work on off-road cycling network brought forward. Estimated cost to do this is £50,000 (mostly in legal fees). Working Group recommends that money is found to fund production of a cycle map.
- All walking/cycling/trail riding routes are available on line.
- Signage in Gower could be better. It needs to be accurate and replaced if damaged or disappeared. There is lack of funding available for this work.
- Statutory duty to signpost footpaths/bridle paths. Members should inform Department if aware of signage issue for these areas and they will rectify.
- European Union is one of the biggest funders for this work. Uncertainty with grants after Brexit.
- More use should be made of volunteers to repair footpaths etc. This has already worked well in one area of Swansea.
- Important to have joined up way of recording and promoting everything going on in the area. Swansea Bay 'Surfari' campaign including campervan at Gower Show was very good. Ideas like this should be used more.
- In Llangollen, there is one number to ring to find out availability of accommodation and to contact hotels etc. There is a charge for using this line so it pays for itself. Would be a good idea for Swansea to do this, if it is not already.
- Would be good to have deck chairs back on Swansea beach. However, the issue of maintenance may be a problem.
- In terms of marketing eco-tourism opportunities, the Authority should make use of memberships of national organisations. Could look at establishing a group again with Natural Resources Wales and other national organisations represented.

#### 3.2 Tourism Report and Presentation

3.2.1 Robert Francis-Davies, Cabinet Member for Investment, Regeneration and Tourism; Steve Hopkins, Tourism and Marketing Manager and Frances Jenkins, Strategic Manager, Tourism, Marketing and Events attended to present an overview of marketing and development of tourism delivered by the Authority, based on the brief provided by the Working Group prior to the meeting, and answer the Working Group's questions.

#### 3.2.2 The following main issues were discussed:

- Tourism and Marketing is a small team of four staff. They are focussing their marketing efforts on North West England, South West England, London and Birmingham.
- Need to ensure big events in Swansea are supported by all departments emptying bins, cleaning up afterwards etc. as this affects people's opinions. There has to be a whole Council approach.
- Have to make Gower work as a tourist destination whilst still protecting the environment and recognising it is also a place where people live. It is not easy to get the balance right.
- The Skyline will be a big tourist attraction if it goes ahead. Signs are positive.
- A percentage of receipts from car park charges should be used to maintain the destination. However, the cost of car parking should not increase in order to fund local destinations as the cost of parking is a barrier to tourism.
- Working Group Members are happy to tweet tourism videos and put on their social media pages.
- Important for different types of accommodation to be made available in the area including pubs, bed and breakfasts, family run hotels and campsites.
   Should look at good practice from other areas with regards marketing of accommodation in Swansea
- Working Group would like to see more advertising like the 'EPIC' banner at Rhosilli last year. This 'viral' sort of advertising is good use of the budget.
- Marketing videos are good but could be longer and include more activities such as hiking/trail walking and the Copper Works.
- Department tends to focus on operators. Would be worth investigating using booking site that the Authority would receive commission from.
- Tourism is now an all-year-round business.
- Glamping pods are a good idea for extending the season.
- Access to and capacity of campsites on Gower is an issue.
- Working Group feels planning policies hinder tourism, for example, a
  campsite on Gower was asked to remove 'pods' as they did not meet some
  planning regulations, the owners of the campsite had to go through a long
  process to show they did meet planning regulations; There have been
  planning issues regarding access to Three Cliffs campsite. If we want to
  remain a tourist destination we need to change planning.
- Authority should use sites with large footfall all over City and County of Swansea to promote/advertise tourism in the area. Should look into using big screen more; using walls at entrances to Swansea Market to advertise local areas; displaying information at the Railway Station and the Quadrant Bus Station; and consider the possibility of pop ups on the main artery roads when arriving into Swansea.
- Authority needs to advertise cultural tourism in Swansea on different platforms such as videos.
- Need to work with BID in promoting tourism in Swansea.

#### 4. Conclusions and Recommendations

- 4.1 The Working Group was pleased to see how much hard work is being done by the Authority to promote tourism in the area. We feel that there is a lot more the Authority could do but recognise that this is restricted by the budget that has reduced drastically in recent years.
- 4.2 We feel it is important to recognise the value of the natural environment to tourism and the economy and recommend that:
  - a. Work on an off-road cycling network is brought forward and that money is found to fund the production of a cycling map for the area (estimated at £50,000, mostly in legal fees).
  - b. Consideration is given to making more use of volunteers to help maintain our environmental assets such as footpaths, steps etc. This is a valuable resource for the Authority and can be a great learning and social experience for volunteers.
- 4.3 The Working Group would like to see an improvement in signage especially in Gower. Many signs are missing or in need of repair. The Authority has a statutory duty to signpost footpaths and bridle paths and we would like people to be made aware that if the Department is informed of any signage issues for these areas they will rectify them.
- 4.4 We are concerned about funding post Brexit and recommend that a piece of work is undertaken to identify future grant funding possibilities.
- 4.5 We feel that the Authority should look at good practice from other areas regarding the marketing of accommodation in Swansea.
- 4.6 We recommend that the Authority explores introducing an information and availability phone line for holiday accommodation in the area. If this includes a booking system, and commission is charged, it could pay for itself.
- 4.7 We would like to see the Authority make use of the membership of national organisations to market eco-tourism in the area such as National Trust, RSPB etc.
- 4.8 We feel that there needs to be a 'whole council' approach to supporting big events in Swansea. Departments such as Refuse and Street Cleansing need to work with the Tourism team to ensure events run smoothly and everything is cleaned up afterwards.
- 4.9 We would like the Authority to consider ring-fencing a percentage of receipts from car parks to maintain the local destination, including maintaining and cleaning public facilities etc.
- 4.10 We would like marketing videos to show more of what people can do and see if they visit Swansea, such as walking/cycling in Gower and promotion of cultural tourism. We would also like to see more use of 'viral' types of advertising that have proved effective in the past and we would like to see

more use of sites with large footfall throughout Swansea to promote/advertise tourism in the area, such as the Market and Quadrant Bus Station.

- 4.11 Members of the Working Group are happy to promote tourism in Swansea through social media, by posting videos and tweeting links etc. We suggest all councillors are contacted, to ask if they will do the same.
- 4.12 We feel that scrutiny needs to look at this topic in more detail than can be done in a one-off working group. We will therefore recommend to the Scrutiny Programme Committee that Tourism is considered as a future scrutiny inquiry topic.

#### 5. Equality and Engagement Implications

- 5.1 The Council is subject to the Public Sector Equality Duty (Wales) and must, in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:
  - Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act.
  - Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
  - Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
     Our Equality Impact Assessment process ensures that we have paid due regard to the above.

Any recommendations agreed by Cabinet will be subject to the council's EIA process.

#### 6. Financial Implications

6.1 There is a financial implication to two recommendations in this report. Recommendation 4.2a - if accepted, the cost of production of a cycle map for the area is estimated at £50,000. Recommendation 4.9 – if accepted, would have a financial implication on how receipts from car parking are used. Any costs arising would need to come from existing resources or would be subject to the usual budget process for future years.

#### 7. Legal Implications

7.1 There are no specific legal implications at this stage.

Background None. Papers:

**Appendices:** None.

### **Scrutiny Inquiry into Tourism – Cabinet Action Plan**

(NB Only include the recommendations agreed, in the action plan)

Recommendation		Action already being   New Action		Timescale	Responsible Officer
		undertaken	Proposed		
1.	The Working Group was pleased to see how much hard work is being done by the Authority to promote tourism in the area. We feel that there is a lot more the Authority could do but recognise that this is restricted by the budget that has reduced drastically in recent years.	Over the last 3 years, we have been working towards a 50% reduction in budget. This has resulted in the closure of the Tourist Information Centre (2016) and the refocussing of activity in line with a digital strategy, which will increase more web visits, increase social media followers and engagement and capture additional segmented and profiled email addresses.	Having just reviewed the Destination Management Plan (DMP), one of the recommendations is to ensure greater input from those Heads of Service whose service areas play an important role in the management of the destination. These will be invited to future steering group meetings.  Cabinet Member comment: 'Consider how a Tourism Strategy may also be introduced, working alongside the current DMP.'	2020/21	Steve Hopkins
2.	We feel it is important to recognise the value of the natural environment to tourism and the economy and recommend that:  a. Work on an off-road cycling network is brought forward and that money is found to fund the	The Council has a duty under the Environment (Wales) Act to 'maintain and enhance biodiversity' and to 'promote the resilience of ecosystems'. Each	In response to the specific recommendations:  a) off-road cycling network and map:	2020- onwards	Chris Dale

production of a cycling map for the area (estimated at £50,000, mostly in legal fees).

b. Consideration is given to making more use of volunteers to help maintain our environmental assets such as footpaths, steps etc. This is a valuable resource for the Authority and can be a great learning and social experience for volunteers.

Council function /
Service Area should
now be considering
where and how they can
achieve this through
their service/business
plans. The Corporate
Biodiversity working
group will provide a
vehicle for raising
awareness and
encouraging best
practice.

The natural environment plays an important role in tourism and consistently comes up as one of the main reasons why people visit our area. As such, sustainability is one of the four key priorities in the Destination Management Plan and the Tourism Team encourages responsible tourism throughout our marketing activity, e.g. recycling, reducing ecological footprint, sustainable transport, walking/cycling, using local produce, etc.

We've previously investigated this but Active Travel money cannot be used for non-urban routes.

The possibility of a Gower off-road cycle route is at early stages of consideration. This project would develop and promote a network of bridleways as a way of enjoying the countryside by bike. It would enable visitors to explore large areas of Gower AONB by bicycle and cross much of the landscape including the high points of all the major hills. There would however be some unavoidable short road sections. It is estimated the cost of the initial phases including physical works, legal processes, landowner compensation, etc. would cost £26,000. There is currently no budget available for such works, so grant funding will need to be identified, but it unlikely to cover full costs and future management

implications.		
· ·		
b) volunteers to help		
maintain environmental		
assets	2020/23	Deb Hill
assets	2020/23	
The Occupation of		
The Council already		
uses volunteers, for		
example the Ramblers,		
for such purposes.		
However, active,		
committed volunteers		
are only one part of a		
solution to meeting the		
demands of the service		
currently, which also		
includes equipment,		
supervision, training and		
transport costs. Even if		
the number of		
volunteers and volunteer		
days was doubled, the		
impact on the amount of		
maintenance needed		
would be minimal and so		
we are not in a position		
to increase our		
responsibilities as a		
result. However, the		
Service is in the process		
of appointing a Welsh		
Government funded,		
volunteer coordinator, to		
increase the number of		
volunteer projects		
undertaken and we		
welcome the support to		

┰
а
Ó
Ð
2
9

			promote this, within the context of the information above.  Recommendation is Partly Agreed to investigate grant funding for the network and increase the recruitment of volunteers		
3.	The Working Group would like to see an improvement in signage especially in Gower. Many signs are missing or in need of repair. The Authority has a statutory duty to signpost footpaths and bridle paths and we would like people to be made aware that if the Department is informed of any signage issues for these areas they will rectify them.	Regarding different signage:  Highways signage – a comprehensive audit was conducted a few years ago in partnership with Highways. Findings were forwarded to maintenance team for repairs / replacement.  Some improvements still outstanding due to lack of budget to address all issues.  Footpaths / bridleways signage – it is a statutory duty of the Council's Countryside Access Team to rectify any signage issues with footpaths and bridleways. However signage is only appropriate where the footpath or bridleway is	Await the findings of the 2019 visitor and trade surveys to see if there are issues with highways signage.  Highways signage: consider another strategic audit for 2020 if resources could be ringfenced for any identified improvements and repairs.  Consider a site-specific, co-ordinated approach to signage between the various Council teams and allocate responsibility/pool resources for on-going maintenance.  Cabinet Member comments: 'Consider funding application and	2020/21	Relevant Council Officers from Place Directorate depending on nature of signage (e.g. Highways, Cultural Services and Regeneration)

٦	Ī
۵	j
g	2
,	
$\simeq$	<u>.</u>

fully accessible, i.e. maintained in a good condition. Due to reduced maintenance budget and grant availability the number of footpaths and bridleways the Council is able to maintain in a good condition is decreasing every year.	opportunity for policy commitments to resource signage improvement.'  Recommendation is AGREED subject to budget constraints		
Waymarks Fingerposts  — an audit was conducted 2 years ago at various Council-run beaches and a rolling programme is in place to repair/replace the wooden fingerposts on the seafront as and when budget becomes available. Langland Bay was completed this year and Caswell is to follow.			
Statutory Signage – e.g. dog ban, water quality, bye-laws, restrictions, planning notices, etc.			
Promotional / Interpretation Signage – e.g. Blue Flags, Lobster Campaign, Smoke-free Beaches, safety messages, etc.			

_
Ų
ā
ã
Œ
ω
$\rightarrow$

		Signage 'clutter' is a recurring issue across the destination, however it becomes more evident in the traditional hotspots such as Port Eynon for example, where a lot of different signs have been erected over the years but not removed (where relevant) or maintained (where needed). This is mainly due to the fact that signage, (as outlined above) has varying functions across different services and each with reduced or zero resources to apply a coordinated approach to ongoing maintenance or replacement.			
4.	We are concerned about funding post Brexit and recommend that a piece of work is undertaken to identify future grant funding possibilities.	The Economic Development and External Funding Team subscribes to an online grants database and continually monitors available grant and loan funding opportunities.  There is a need for continued engagement with Welsh Government to influence the shape of tourism funding post	Explore innovative funding and investment strategies and borrow prudently to support the City Deal, only when it is right to do so.  Implement a joined up approach to all public expenditure and the use of buildings and resources to ensure we can continue to do more with less and can seek	2020/21	Paul Relf

τ
a
g
Ф
C
Κ,

5.	We feel that the Authority should	Brexit, and to explore partnership funding models where other organisations may be in a better position to bid for funding but with the backing and support of the Council.  There is some success already with this approach, e.g. Hafod Copperworks Musgrave Engine House project working with Swansea University and Friends of Hafod-Morfa Copperworks. External funding from EU sources has been decreasing as a percentage of overall external funding secured in recent years.  The City Deal and regeneration of Hafod Copperworks remain a key priority for the Council in improving economic wellbeing and tourism in the area.	the wider and more imaginative community use of public assets, such as Council-owned buildings.  Continue to explore collaborative and innovative ways in which local services can be financed and delivered most efficiently, and how the value of council assets can be maximised.  In any new DMP action plan, ED&EFT to review actions and identify potential funding streams  Continue engagement with Welsh Government to influence shape of tourism funding post Brexit  Explore potential partnership funding models for future projects.		
J.	look at good practice from other areas regarding the marketing of accommodation in Swansea.	sector is part of a destination's overall tourism offer and is intrinsically linked to	arrangements that other LA's in Wales have with their businesses who want to promote their	2020/21	Steve Hopkins

	•	1	Ī
	ç	١	j
(	(		
	(	1	)
	(	٠	
	č	•	

other elements such as activities, attractions, food & drinks and major events.

Our marketing campaigns focus on promoting the destination as a whole rather than just the accommodation sector.

However, we do have a comprehensive 'Where To Stay' section on the official tourism website with 56 listed private sector accommodation providers (e.g. hotels, B&Bs, hostels, caravan and camping sites, etc.). These are businesses/organisation s who buy into a yearly marketing package with the Council, i.e. Visit Swansea Bay Marketing Partners.

Our current requirement is that all accommodation operators on the tourism website must be inspected and graded/listed with either VisitWales or The AA.

services with them.

Review our current requirement to only accept graded properties on our tourism website and consider a policy statement for this.

Report the findings of the visitor and trade surveys to relevant Cabinet Members and the DMP Steering Group.

	-	τ
	2	Ú
(	(	2
	(	D
	c	
	7	ĸ

Although this provides re-assurance to visitors and a level of protection for the Council in case of a complaint, this also restricts the number of businesses that can be recruited as Marketing Partners. It also doesn't reflect the way visitors now search for accommodation i.e. they search for brands. recommendations and increasingly, through the sharing economy.

Some operators, whether graded or not, choose to promote their property through other, unregulated sharing economy networks such as Airbnb or local private websites (e.g. gower.com).

We already undertake regular benchmarking exercises to assess how other comparable destinations market themselves and also exchange good practice e.g. through BRADA (British Resorts and Destinations Association) of which we

π
aj
g
Ф
ω
Ó

are members.		
A few years ago, we also worked with Visit Wales in appointing a consultancy to undertake an Accommodation Demand Study. This work has informed some of the most recent hotel developments in the City Centre.		
STEAM figures and occupancy figures are also a good benchmark to determine how Swansea compares to the Welsh average and other destinations. Swansea occupancy figures for serviced accommodation, for example, are consistently higher than the Wales average and the STEAM figures demonstrate continuous growth.		
Regular visitor surveys give us an insight into who our visitors are, where they come from, where they stay, how they booked their holiday, how much they		

•	υ
9	
	<u>⊇</u>
ì	٠.٦
ò	ກັ

		spent, whether they are satisfied with their visit and likely to visit again and/or recommend us to others. We are able to use this intelligence to target our marketing activity more effectively.  We are also planning a tourism trade survey for this Autumn to benchmark destination performance against the 2012 findings. Questions revolve mainly around destination management issues.			
8.	We feel that there needs to be a 'whole council' approach to supporting big events in Swansea. Departments such as Refuse and Street Cleansing need to work with the Tourism team to ensure events run smoothly and everything is cleaned up afterwards.	Events are a key driver of Tourism. The Special Events Team currently works closely with several other Council departments / teams in order to deliver safe and enjoyable events across the City and County. These include Council organised events and those run by the private sector. For example:  Highways – road closures, traffic plans, event parking, enforcement, Park & Ride	That the Special Events Team within Cultural Services acts as the first and single point of contact for events and event organisers in relation to the delivery of events and event management enquiries.  The delivery of events in public spaces is a cross cutting activity involving all relevant departments as part of our ongoing ability to deliver on the Council's priority of transforming our economy and	2020/21	David Price-Deer

v
a
g
Ф
ω
7

		Parks & Cleansing — event site preparation & reparation; litter collection, recycling  Public Health — food safety, event licensing  Legal — events contracts and indemnities  Communications — corporate press and social media support  Health & Safety — emergency management and contingency planning  Cultural Services Marketing & Tourism team undertake the event marketing activity to residents and visitors.	infrastructure, inclusion and wellbeing factors.  Endeavouring to ensure that associated new developments or major events take into account sustainable development principles where possible and, where feasible, mitigating actions are developed regarding sustainability.		
10.	We would like marketing videos to show more of what people can do and see if they visit Swansea, such as walking/cycling in Gower and promotion of cultural tourism. We would also like to see more use of 'viral' types of advertising that have proved effective in the past and we would like to see more use of sites with large footfall throughout Swansea to promote/advertise	Our marketing activity targets potential visitors from outside of Wales, therefore it is not always visible to Swansea residents.  We already have a range of promotional videos produced to market the destination,	New videos are already planned for 2020 'Year of the Great Outdoors' however, a strong commitment to continue with this strategy for 2021 and beyond will be vital as Tourism is the only section within the Council, which proactively place-	2020/21	Steve Hopkins

v	
a	
ge	
ω	
$\infty$	

tourism in the area, such as the	which can be viewed on	markets the destination.	
Market and Quadrant Bus Station.	our YouTube channel at:		
	www.youtube.com/user/		
	visitswanseabayTV		
	Our videos are produced		
	in a number of formats		
	so that they can become		
	viral, shared by our		
	partners and are often		
	produced in such a way		
	that they can have a		
	number of different		
	uses.		
	These videos are		
	promoted online via the		
	tourism website, social		
	media and email		
	marketing to our		
	targeted audiences. This		
	is one of many channels		
	we use to promote the		
	130 private sector		
	Partners, who have		
	signed up to yearly		
	marketing packages with		
	us.		
	Our digital content		
	focusses on the main		
	reasons why people visit		
	Swansea Bay, which are		
	the key findings of our visitor survey, i.e.		
	beaches, natural		
	landscape and our		
	coastline.		
	oodotiirio.		

U
۵ĭ
9
Ø
ω
Ö

		Т		1	
11.	Members of the Working Group are happy to promote tourism in Swansea through social media, by posting videos and tweeting links etc. We suggest all councillors are contacted, to ask if they will do the same.	We have existing channels that both businesses and consumers follow to receive information, including Facebook, Twitter, YouTube, Instagram, enewsletters, etc.  We post regular updates and generate a high level of engagement with our audiences.	To identify and share with all members the digital channels they can follow and sign up to, so they can assist in the promotion of the destination.	2020/21	Steve Hopkins
12.	We feel that scrutiny needs to look at this topic in more detail than can be done in a one-off working group. We will therefore recommend to the Scrutiny Programme Committee that Tourism is considered as a future scrutiny inquiry topic.	We have presented to scrutiny inquiries in 2014 and 2019 and welcome any further opportunities to raise the profile of Tourism and its importance to the local economy, Council priorities, Welsh Government priorities and the Well-Being of Future Generations Act.	Whilst we would be happy to be part of a future topic, the real challenge lies in ensuring that a tourism strategy for the destination is developed and integrated alongside other council strategies and polices. An ideal starting point for this, at a time when the national strategy is being reviewed, is to present the work of the tourism team to the Policy Development Committee (PDC).	2020/23	Steve Hopkins



### Economy & Infrastructure PDC – 16 January 2020 Work Plan 2019-20

Meeting Date	Agenda items and Format
20 June 2019	Work Plan Discussion.
	1) River Corridor Draft Strategy.
	2) Transportation Strategy (including City Centre Parking).
	3) Homes as Power Stations.
	4) Green Infrastructure Strategy (economic implications).
	5) Swansea's Economy.
	6) Public Toilets (predominately in the City Centre).
	7) High Street.
18 July 2019	1) Green Infrastructure Strategy.
	2) Swansea's Economy (Tourism).
19 September 2019	1) River Corridor Draft Strategy.
	2) Green Infrastructure Strategy.



### Economy & Infrastructure PDC – 16 January 2020 Work Plan 2019-20

17 October 2019	Swansea's Economy (Tourism).     Active Travel Improvements.
14 November 2019	1) Swansea Economy (Implications of Brexit).
	2) High Street Empty Properties.
19 December 2019 – meeting cancelled	
16 January 2020	1) Cabinet Member Response in relation to the Scrutiny Inquiry Panel Report (Tourism).
	2) Feedback from Site Visit to Homes as Power Stations.
	3) Discussion on Work Programme for 2020.
20 February 2020	
19 March 2020	
16 April 2020	
To be Scheduled	1) Public Toilets – Work Shop.